
RTK Request 91- Nash narrowed focus: “All documents specific to ATVs and ATV 
trails, Ride the Wilds, WMNF, the NH Heritage bureau, invasive species and the 
Trio Pond dam.” 

 Email January 2023 to present – sent to Jo Anne by January 2, 2024  

 

Timeline below:  

From: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2023, 8:03 AM 
To: Machinist, Margaret <Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov> 
Cc: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: trio pond dam and field visit Maggie  

 

Maggie: 

 

Thanks for yesterday field visit of Nash stream camps, and complexity of the easements monitoring, 
access for gravel pits and the Trio Pond Dam and its complexi�es with NH DES access on our land base 
and beter understanding NHDES restora�on efforts. I look forward to con�nually working with you and 
the team up in the northern country.  I will plan to be on the call with you for the trio pond dam access 
issues. Happy Friday ! Thanks, Keri   

 

Keri L. Yankus, Land Management Bureau Administrator 

Division of Forests & Lands 

Department of Natural & Cultural Resources 

172 Pembroke Road 

Concord, NH 03301 

(603) 271-3457 

Email: Keri.l.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov 

www.nh.gov/nhdfl/ 

 

 



protecting, promoting and managing New Hampshire’s natural resources 
since 1909  

Statement of Confidentiality:  The contents of this message are confidential.  Any unauthorized 
disclosure, reproduction, use or dissemination (either whole or in part) is prohibited.  If you are not the 
intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the message from 
your system. 

  

 

From: Machinist, Margaret <Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 2:25 PM 
To: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: trio pond dam 

 

 

 

Margaret Machinist 

Northern Regional Forester 

NH Division of Forests and Lands 

603-788-4157 

margaret.o.machinist@dncr.nh.gov 

 

Thanks for stopping by my office today. Please see the invite for Monday. Thanks, Keri  

 

-----Original Appointment----- 
From: Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 2:51 PM 
To: Clark, Corey; Rennie, Craig; Machinist, Margaret; Savage, Clinton; Krautmann, Charlie; Timmins, 
Michael; Spoerl, Robert 
Cc: Yankus, Keri 
Subject: Little Bog Dam and Lower Trio Dam - NHDES Rehabilitation Project 



When: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:00 PM-2:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada). 
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 

Hi,  

I wanted to let you both know about an upcoming mee�ng to discuss the Trio Pond and Litle Bog Pond 
rebuild.  Maybe one or both of you can join.  

Thanks, 
Maggie  

 

-----Original Appointment----- 
From: Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 3:37 PM 
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

 

Sorry for the short no�ce but it looks like everyone is available tomorrow morning.  If not, we can 
reschedule to a later date. Thanks, Corey  

________________________________________________________________________________  

Microsoft Teams meeting  

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  

Click here to join the meeting  

Meeting ID: 251 068 457 360  
Passcode: yxcNpf  

Download Teams | Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device  

nhgov@m.webex.com  

Video Conference ID: 115 148 505 5  

Alternate VTC instructions  

Or call in (audio only)  



+1 603-931-4944,,495537710#   United States, Concord  

Phone Conference ID: 495 537 710#  

Find a local number | Reset PIN  

Learn More | Meeting options  

________________________________________________________________________________  

 

From: Yankus, Keri  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 8:45 AM 
To: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: FW: DNCR Lands & road improvements ( Little Bog Dam and Lower Tril Dam - NHDES 
Rehabilitation Project meet in held 11/27/2023)  
Importance: High 

 

Hello Patrick and Will: 

 

I confirmed with Bob Spoerl this morning that there were no Fish and Game staff on the Microso� Teams 
Mee�ng held this past Monday it was only 2 NHDES staff and the rest of DNCR. DNCR was no�fied on by 
Corely Clark NHDES short no�ce to Maggie. Maggie asked Bob and I to be on with her. Originally Seth 
was not originally invited to this teams mee�ng. I invited him when he came to my office to discuss other 
topics and I communicated to him about this he asked if I would forward the invite which I did knowing 
he is the person who over sees or manages our DNCR dams and is the liaison with NHDES.  

 

Confirmed the following in atendance on the  teams mee�ng:  Corey Clark, Craig Fennie, Maggie 
Machinist, Clint Savage, Charlie Krautmann, Micheal Timmins, Bob Spoerl, Keri Yankus and Seth Prescot  

 

I researched the statue this morning with Bob Spoerl- It states the following:  

 

“ Title L Water Management and Protec�on Chapter 4823 Dams, Mills , and Flowage – Acquisi�on by 
state of certain Dams & Water Rights Sec�on 482:48 

 

II.(a) Governor and council approval having been granted, legisla�ve approval is herby given to the land 
conserva�on investment program to accept the following dams and assign to the department of fish and 



gam e for management purposes, including but not limited to opera�on and minor maintenance of said 
structure, as Follows: 

(1) Litle Bob Pond dam , Odell, dam #185.03 
(2) (2) Trio Ponds dam , Odell, dam #185.02 “ 

 

Let me know if you need anything else. Keri  

 

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
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 3:16 PM 
To: Machinist, Margaret <Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: FW: DNCR Lands & road improvements 



 

Maggie: 

 

Not sure why you are not copied on this, but I think it’s important for you to be in the know since you 
deal with the folks there. Keri  

 

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

  

 

From: Spoerl, Robert <robert.f.spoerl@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 10:11 AM 
To: Prescott, Seth <seth.s.prescott@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Cc: Rennie, Craig <Craig.D.Rennie2@dncr.nh.gov>; Fioravante, Albdios 



<Albdios.V.Fioravante@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: DNCR Lands & road improvements 

 

Seth 

I was also struggling with the concept but from a different perspec�ve.  If we are doing the repairs/ 
maintenance due to safety concerns then maintaining a level of access for EMERGENCIES makes 
sense.  Put in a gate as part of the project to protect the road.  If it proves to be a public nuisance, then 
lock the gate with a double lock pin.  

 

Robert (Bob) Spoerl 

Land Agent 

NH Forests and Lands 

603-271-2765 

 

From: Prescott, Seth <seth.s.prescott@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 9:48 AM 
To: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov>; Spoerl, Robert <robert.f.spoerl@dncr.nh.gov> 
Cc: Rennie, Craig <Craig.D.Rennie2@dncr.nh.gov>; Fioravante, Albdios 
<Albdios.V.Fioravante@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: DNCR Lands & road improvements 

 

 

The comments at yesterday’s mee�ng that, “ people with Camp leases on DNDR property like the road 
impassable to keep the public out” is not something that should be viewed favorably by DNCR.  The 
Minimal road improvements to access the dams should be made, no ques�ons (not destroyed a�er) 
with all necessary BMP’s for road construc�on and maintenance.  The “public” has just as much right to 
enjoy the property as the Camp Leases, Excluding the area for the camp lease of course. Any camp 
leasee who believes different and tries to influence the exclusive private use of public property should be 
removed as they have likely enjoyed the privilege of a camp lease on DNCR property for too long. I am 
not advoca�ng gates wide open, but lets be real.  Also, interes�ng and reassuring how DES struggles to 
obey all their own rules when it comes to doing a project.  On the 23 Dams DNCR owns on DNCR 
property we make necessary improvements to access, monitor and maintain the dams no ques�ons.  We 
also try to get all necessary permits.  It would not be maintaining the standard to think we would restrict 
NHDES from doing the same for a dam under their control for maintenance on DNCR property.  F&G 
actually Pays NHDES hundreds of thousands, annually to manage & maintain their dams. 

 



Seth Prescott 

State of New Hampshire 

Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 

Office of the Commissioner -  DD&M 

172 Pembroke Road 

Concord, NH 03301 

 

Office 271-3982 

Cell  

 

From: Yankus, Keri  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 8:50 AM 
To: Spoerl, Robert <robert.f.spoerl@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: FW: DNCR Lands & road improvements ( Little Bog Dam and Lower Tril Dam - NHDES 
Rehabilitation Project meet in held 11/27/2023)  
Importance: High 

 

Bob: 

 

Just as an FYI so you are in the loop and know what Patrick and Will requested last evening. Keri  

 

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

 

From: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 9:17 AM 
To: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: DNCR Lands & road improvements ( Little Bog Dam and Lower Tril Dam - NHDES 
Rehabilitation Project meet in held 11/27/2023)  

 

Thanks Keri.   I will consider this addi�onal info when reaching out to Director Mason of Fish & Game 
and Mr. Clark at DES about this damn issue. 

 

 

 

Patrick D. Hackley, Director 

Division of Forests & Lands 

Department of Natural & Cultural Resources 

172 Pembroke Road 

Concord, NH 03301 

(603) 271-2214 

www.nh.gov/nhdfl/ 



 

protecting, promoting and managing New Hampshire’s natural resources since 1909 

 

 

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
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 12:27 PM 
To: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov>; Machinist, 
Margaret <Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: FW: Nash River Stream Project 

 

Well, that didn’t take long….see message below from Councilor Kenney.   Not sure how he got wind of 
the projects but it may save me �me reaching out to DES about addressing public and camp owner 
concerns. 

 

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

 

 

From: Kenney, Joseph <joseph.d.kenney@nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 12:17 PM 



To: Clark, Corey <corey.clark@des.nh.gov> 
Cc: Scot, Robert <Robert.R.Scot@des.nh.gov>; Stewart, Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Hackley, 
Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: Nash River Stream Project 

 

Director Clark, 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

 

. 

 

Regards, 

 

 

Joseph D. Kenney 

Execu�ve Councilor District 1 

Wakefield, NH 

 

 

From: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 12:49 PM 



To: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: DNCR Lands & road improvements ( Little Bog Dam and Lower Tril Dam - NHDES 
Rehabilitation Project meet in held 11/27/2023)  

 

Patrick  

 

Corey Clark- Chief Engineer with NHDES WR/DAM/Water Resources. 

Mobile:  & work 1-603-271-8871 and email as follows: corey.j.clark@des.nh.gov 

 

Keri  

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
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 10:29 AM 
To: Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: DNCR Lands & road improvements ( Little Bog Dam and Lower Tril Dam - NHDES 
Rehabilitation Project meet in held 11/27/2023)  

 

Please forward Corey Clark’s contact informa�on. 

 

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

 

FYI – DES reply to Councilor Kenney’s concerns.  

 

I’ve asked everyone on that thread to include NHFG Director Mason on future updates. 

 

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

 

 

From: Pelletier, Rene <RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 4:30 PM 
To: Kenney, Joseph <joseph.d.kenney@nh.gov> 
Cc: Scott, Robert <Robert.R.Scott@des.nh.gov>; Stewart, Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Hackley, 
Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>; Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov> 
Subject: Nash Stream Project 

 

 

Councilor Kenney: Below is the status of the Nash Stream project.  

 

 

The Nash Stream project which includes 2 dams (Little Bog and Lower Trio) came 
at the request of Governor Sununu. We are using ARPA funds for the project and 
using GEI as our consultant/design engineer. Currently, the plan is to put this 
project out to bid in the late summer/early fall of 2024 and for construction to 



take place in 2025 and possibly 2026. The project will include reconstruction of 
both dams as well as upgrading the road between the two dams so that it is 
accessible for concrete trucks. Wetland Permits will be submitted this 
spring/summer and there weren’t any notable endangered species. We got hits 
for the Canadien Lynx and the Worl Begonia but you will get hits for those 
anywhere in NH north of the notches. 

 

We don’t know of drawdown plans yet as the design effort is only at a conceptual 
level. We will know more this winter when we get to the 60% design. GEI and their 
surveyor (BSC Group) have already surveyed both dams and the road and have 
mapped out wetlands, stream crossings, etc. Let me know if you would like to 
discuss further. Give me a call at 271-0677 

 

Kind Regards, 

 

Rene 

 

 

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

Executive Councilor District 1 

Wakefield, NH 

 

From: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2023 11:33 AM 
To: Mason, Scot <Scot.R.Mason@wildlife.nh.gov>; Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>; Stewart, 
Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Pelle�er, Rene <RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov>; Timmins, 
Dianne <Dianne.M.Timmins@wildlife.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov>; Machinist, Margaret 
<Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: Bog Pond Tri Pond Dams 

 

All: 

 

I would like to offer the conference room at DNCR’s North Country Resource Center in Lancaster to 
conduct a public hearing on the proposed dam reconstruc�on.  We have over 90 camp lessees on Nash 
Stream Forest who would appreciate the opportunity to beter understand the proposal and ask 
ques�ons.  

 



Please let me know when the �ming is right to schedule the mee�ng and we will reserve the room. 

 

Best regards, 

 

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

 

 

From: Mason, Scot <Scot.R.Mason@wildlife.nh.gov>  
Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 1:16 PM 
To: Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>; Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>; Stewart, 
Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Pelle�er, Rene <RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov>; Timmins, 
Dianne <Dianne.M.Timmins@wildlife.nh.gov> 
Subject: Bog Pond Tri Pond Dams 

 

Corry, 

I’d like to chat with you when you get back next week concerning the dam replacements.  If I remember 
correctly there may be fairly good private road from Philips Brook area that would get you within a 



quarter of a mile from the Trio Pond dam.  It has been 12 years or so since I’ve been on the road, and at 
the �me the land owner was ac�vely logging, so it might not be as good as I remember. 

I have had some conversa�ons with camp owners and I think it would be good for us to discuss the issue, 
and consider having a public hearing. 

 

Scot R. Mason 

Execu�ve Director 

New Hampshire Fish & Game Department 

11 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03301 

603-271-3511 

 

From: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>  
Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 4:00 PM 
To: Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>; Timmins, Dianne <Dianne.M.Timmins@wildlife.nh.gov>; 
Mason, Scot <Scot.R.Mason@wildlife.nh.gov>; Stewart, Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; 
Pelle�er, Rene <RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov>; Machinist, Margaret 
<Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: Bog Pond Tri Pond Dams 

 

Sounds good Corey - thanks! 

 

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
Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 3:53 PM 
To: Timmins, Dianne <Dianne.M.Timmins@wildlife.nh.gov>; Hackley, Patrick 
<Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>; Mason, Scot <Scot.R.Mason@wildlife.nh.gov>; Stewart, Sarah 
<Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Pelle�er, Rene <RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov>; Machinist, Margaret 
<Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: Bog Pond Tri Pond Dams 

 

Hi Patrick,  

 

We will certainly take you up on your offer to hold a mee�ng in Lancaster.  While we know the concepts 
about the project, I would like to get some more design details in place before I meet with the public.  I 
think this will help everyone’s understanding of the project and our approach.  Hopefully, we can hold 
this mee�ng at some point in February.  I’ll keep you posted.  

 

Thank you,  

 

Corey  

 

Corey J. Clark, P.E. 

Chief Engineer 

NH Department of Environmental Services 

Water Division 

Dam Bureau 

29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95 

Concord, NH 03302-0095 

Tel:  (603) 271-1961 



Fax: (603) 271-6120 

Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov 

 

From: Timmins, Dianne <Dianne.M.Timmins@wildlife.nh.gov>  
Sent: Monday, December 18, 2023 9:55 AM 
To: Hackley, Patrick <Patrick.D.Hackley@dncr.nh.gov>; Mason, Scot <Scot.R.Mason@wildlife.nh.gov>; 
Clark, Corey <Corey.J.Clark@des.nh.gov>; Stewart, Sarah <Sarah.L.Stewart@dncr.nh.gov>; Pelle�er, Rene 
<RENE.J.PELLETIER@des.nh.gov> 
Cc: Guinn, William <william.t.guinn@dncr.nh.gov>; Machinist, Margaret 
<Margaret.O.Machinist@dncr.nh.gov>; Yankus, Keri <Keri.L.Yankus@dncr.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: Bog Pond Tri Pond Dams 

 

Sounds good to me Patrick.  

 

Dianne Timmins 

Inland Fisheries Chief 

NH Fish and Game Department 

11 Hazen Drive 

Concord NH 03301 

603-271-1744 

Dianne.m.�mmins@wildlife.nh.gov 

 

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

 

 

 

 




